A regular meeting of the Bracken County Fiscal Court was held on August 27, 2025, for the
purpose of transacting any business properly presented by the established agenda.

Presiding: Tina K. Teegarden,
Judge Executive

Present: Heather Brumley, David Kelsch, Debbie Mayfield, John Scott, Danny Holleran, Sandy
Ruf, Craig Miller, Kevin Jarrells

Let the record reflect that the Court Members received a copy of any Transfers and VVendor
Claims.

Upon Motion of Debbie Mayfield, second by Sandy Ruf, that the court approve the minutes of
the Special meeting on August 11,2025 and the Regular meeting on August 13, 2025.
Vote being unanimous.

Road Department Update

Road Supervisor Stacey gave an update. They have been mowing and bushhogging in Foster
area. The rest of Grovers Run is ready to go. He talked to HG Mayes and they are supposed to be
in next Thursday or Friday to pave it. They have been trimming tree limbs on several roads.
Magistrate Jarrells thanked him for the work he and his crew did on Wrangling Run.

Animal Shelter Expansion Update
Tabled

County Comprehensive Plan

Jamison French the Community Development Specialist for BTADD came to update the court
on the comprehensive plan. Over the last year, with the Bracken County planning commission,
he has helped update the comprehensive plan. The planning commission comes up with a
guiding document that says the history of the county, where the county is at and where the
county is going. He stated today he has the goals and objectives that need to be approved. They
haven’t necessarily been changed but they have been updated to bring relevant. The plan is
updated every 5 years, all that was done this time is just the update. The goals and objectives
section has added broadband and healthcare. Those 2 were not previously included in the plan.
Magistrate Miller asked where the healthcare was in the plan, Jamison stated under public
services and community facilities. He stated it was grouped into that category to keep it a little
broader. Judge Teegarden stated the county attorney drew up an ordinance since they never had
to pass an ordinance with there being no major changes to the comprehensive plan until this year.
This will allow the court to approve and accept the objectives and goals. The cities do this as
well. Jamison stated this is a joint commission, there are representatives appointed from each
municipality. Magistrate Miller asked for a list of members. Jamison stated he did not have that
list with him. Judge Teegarden stated Joe Beckett is the chairman, members are Amy Pribble,
Betsey Miller, Vaughn Kelsch, Chad Asbury and Jeff Williams. Magistrate Ruf asked under
Growth and Management and Land use planning, is this saying that they will be told how they
can or can’t sell their property? Jamison stated these are recommendations. Each county has its
own unique planning commission and the power that resides in that plan. For example, in areas
that have planning and zoning or subdivision regulations, the planning commission can help
regulate some of that. In this sense its more of a guiding recommendation. Judge Teegarden
stated the planning commission has subdivision regulations and that’s why this section is in here.
They do guide on property divisions, putting in drives with being able to pull out safely onto a
state highway and things like that. That is why the county pays Cardinal Engineering to review
those plats. This comprehensive plan would be for example, if a large business wanted to come
to Bracken County, they would want to see the goals and objectives for the future in the county.
Magistrate Miller stated something separate from this, like the County Industrial Authority at the
Industrial Park, they have protective convenance for 30 years for all the acreage they have there,
it is superseding for any purchase of the land at the park. Those were established years ago to
help protect the area. Magistrate Miller asked, section 2.1 under General Planning, do they
actually have a budget for the planning commission that is used for outside resources such as
Buffalo Trace? Judge Teegarden stated it is in the county budget, we pay legal fees etc.
Magistrate Brumley asked, where is the lake in Milford as stated in section 2.8 Tourism and
outdoor recreation. If there is one being promoted, she would like to know where it is. Judge




Teegarden stated she will have this checked out before the second reading. Magistrate Miller
asked if these goals and objectives are in a specific order? Jamison stated they are in no order.
Magistrate Miller stated he would delete the Lake at Milford, Magistrate Brumley stated if there
is something else, they can find to promote Milford she would be all for it.

Motion to approve the 1% Reading without the Milford Lake made by Craig Miller, second by
Debbie Mayfield.

Vote being unanimous

Change Order EMS CDBG Project

Sierra O’Cull from the BTADD came to address the court. She stated this is the first change
order for the Bracken County EMS project. There is the house that is right up on the hill from the
current EMS building. That building is going to be demolished, and the EMS is going to absorb
that property for their remodel. The house was tested, and it was determined that there is
asbestos. There was an allowance of $16,000 that was set aside for testing and abatement for this
particular project. It was determined that the actual cost of the abatement was $5,069.66. The
revised amount would be $10,930.34 remaining for future asbestos related expenses that could
occur during the project. When the project was bid, Perkins Carmack said they can do the project
for a bid amount of $1,550,000.00 with the understanding that $16,000 of that is going to be
dedicated for the asbestos abatement and testing. This change order is just revising that amount
for the asbestos abatement.

Motion for approval made by Heather Brumley, second by John Scott

Vote being unanimous

Tax Rate Bracken County Extension District

Agent Molly Jordan addressed the court and introduced the new face in the office, Macy
Heights. She is the Ag natural resource agent. Molly stated the Extension District board met and
elected the following tax rates. Real property .0710, personal property .0907 and motor vehicles
.0330.

Motion for approval made by John Scott, second by Sandy Ruf

Vote being unanimous

Tax Rate Bracken County Soil Conservation

Darren Wright and Meghann McClanahan were there to represent. Darren stated the
conservation district will be leaving the tax rate the same. This leaves it as .02

Motion for approval made by Sandy Ruf, second by Danny Holleran

Vote being unanimous

Tax Rate Bracken County Public Library

Christian Shroll was there to address the court. He stated he handed out a pamphlet of some
things that have been going on at the library this summer, it’s been a busy year. The board was
presented with a compensating rate of .092 and a personal property of .1043. The board voted to
make it a flat rate for both of .091. It still covers everything they need it to cover. Magistrate
Brumley asked when the addition will get started. Christian stated as a means for best using
funds, they purchased the property because it was available, and they didn’t know when it would
come back available again, but cost wise it will probably be at least 5 years before they start. The
whole scope of the project is going to remodel the bathrooms and also put in study space, a teen
focus area and building a half wall and a tv video game system etc. They want the library to be a
safe space, especially for the teens. This teen space has been in the works for a while. The library
will have to be closed to do some of the repairs, so they anticipate doing this during winter
months which are the slow time. Magistrate Ruf stated looking at the handout he gave everyone;
it is amazing what the library does for the kids of this community. Christian stated he is just the
face of the library, but the staff has really helped with the successes. Two of the staff have even
been recognized at the state level and been asked to be on a committee there. He stated aside
from the books checked out they have programs and meeting rooms all for free. Lastly, he
wanted to make everyone aware that on Thursday the 25™ there will be a speaker from the
Holocaust humanities bureau in Cincinnati and to also take a look at the new website.

Motion to approve the tax rate made by Debbie Mayfield, second by Kevin Jarrells

Vote being unanimous.

Bracken County Tax Rate

PVA Tracey Florer presented the tax rates for the county. He provided the same worksheet he
has for the past few years. He stated, as Sheriff Boody has mentioned, the amount of funds they
collected this year was a little over 99%. They sent out approximately 5900 bills last year. The
worksheet handed out to the court shows depending on what rate they take, how much income
that will generate. PVA Florer stated the last 15 years they have been fortunate enough to use the
same rate for the tangibles and real estate. This year the tangibles have come in considerably less




than they did last year. The Judge’s office gets a worksheet from DLG that tells what the rates
can be for real estate They also get a worksheet to calculate and see what rate you can use for
compensating and 4% increase for tangibles. When they did that, it says you can take a
compensating rate of .437 on the tangibles. He broke that up on the worksheet to show what each
class would generate. He also did the bottom one with the 4% on real estate and tangibles. PVA
Florer stated there was a public service company that appealed their assessments. Their
assessment is put on the books for considerably less, once Frankfort gets that settled with them
the county may recover some of that but right now for the projections, we have to use the
assessed value. That’s what has driven the difference in rates this time. Magistrate Miller asked,
on those tangibles, are they mainly all utilities? PVA Florer stated yes. It’s cellular, railroad, gas
electric, internet etc. Those companies that provide those kinds of services to the county.
Magistrate Miller asked, can you keep our county assessment for tang and real estate at the same
.386 as we have but increase for those tangibles to the higher rate on those psc only ones? PVA
Florer stated he does not believe so, he believes its all or nothing. Magistrate Miller stated so you
have to go the .386, .437 or the .401, .454. PVA Florer stated yes, if you elect to take the
compensating rate per the worksheet. Or you can keep the .386 for everyone. Magistrate Miller
asked, the tangible rates only apply to those entities, correct? PVA Florer stated those plus the
businesses in Bracken County. Magistrate Miller stated they wouldn’t want that increase to come
back on all their businesses county wide. Magistrate Kelsch asked what the homestead
exemption is this year. PVA Florer stated $49,100 is allowed to be taken off the assessment if
you are 65+ yrs old or disabled. It will be that way for 2026 then it will increase. Magistrate
Miller asked if the general assembly passed any legislation that they were changing or looking
into eliminate assessment increases. PVA Florer stated he is not aware of anything like that.
DLG is still holding PVA offices to their guidelines. Judge Teegarden asked, on tangibles, on the
businesses out in the county, are they self-reporting? PVA Florer stated yes, they are self-
reporting and the PVA office has no control over what they report. Judge Teegarden stated in
taking the compensating rate for both classes at .386 it would bring in a total for the county of
$2,388,906.67, PVA Florer stated that would be the projection if 100% payment. Judge
Teegarden stated if taking the tangible increasing and being a compensating rate of .386 real
estate and .437 tangible would bring the county $2,445,162.39. PVA Florer stated if they wanted
tangibles this year to match tangibles from last year you can increase it .437. Magistrate
Mayfield stated last year they kept the rates across the board. The tangible decrease is due to the
psc appeal. Magistrate Mayfield asked, which scenario makes the most sense to keep them in
line with what was done last year? Judge Teegarden stated when she and PVA Florer looked at
the numbers, she would go with the compensating rates that the worksheets provided due to the
drop in tangibles because it’s allowing the county to take in the same as last year. It would allow
the county to generate the same income in tangibles. Judge Teegarden stated she would
recommend doing the compensating rates different at the .386/.437 that came out from the
worksheet totals. Magistrate Miller stated that is also a tax increase on the inventory on our
businesses. Magistrate Miller stated that even if they kept them both at the .386, they would be
generating more than last year. It’s whether you want $7,811.44 or $64,067.17.

David Kelsch made a motion to keep both rates the same at .386, Craig Miller second that with
the explanation of it if you go to the separate tangible taxes, you are increasing costs on local
businesses. Increasing costs on their equipment, on their inventory and their costs would be at a
record high. It would make the county revenue more but it’s going to cost the county businesses.
Vote being unanimous

Magistrate Mayfield asked PVA Florer, they have had a few constituents ask about the school
tax rate, that they are increasing by 4% this year and it is “said” that they will ask for that
increase for the next 2 years. PVA Florer stated what he knows is they took the 4% and took a
nickel equivalency this year at Bracken County. He knows it was publicized and there was a
meeting. As far as the 4%, he’s not aware if they are looking to do that the next 2 years. It went
from .471 to .565. They have to have some sort of project coming up in order to get the state
funding this is what they have to do. It was advertised in the newspaper, Magistrate Mayfield and
Magistrate Ruf stated it was a small ad and not many people get the newspaper. Magistrate
Miller stated that is all, by law, that they have to do. Magistrate Mayfield stated in today’s day
with social media there should be other ways to get the word out. Magistrate Mayfield said she
heard that there are ways to hold meetings and get petitions to voice your concerns, but she
hasn’t looked in to all that. PV A Florer stated as far as he knows, the 4% is allowable for them to
take annually, it's anything over that that can be contested. The 4% increase can hold a hearing
for people to ask question but that’s all its for, they can still take that.

Judge Teegarden stated when you are looking at your county tax rates and you are looking at
your residences, your citizens, your inventory, just remember for these businesses Bracken
County does not impose or get any revenue from any kind of payroll tax for a business or an
insurance premium tax therefore if you’re keeping an even balance on increasing your taxes
which is basically what we operate off of in our budget. Just keep in mind we are not imposing
those taxes while the city of Augusta and Brooksville do impose those taxes.



Magistrate Brumley thanked PVA Florer for the excellent job he and his office does. She has had
to deal with many pva’s across the state and his office always goes above and beyond and get
answers to things other offices would not.

Judicial Center Concerns/Issues/Changes- APPROVAL of Annual Maintenance Contract
for HVAC/Geothermal System

Judge Teegarden stated the mold remediation is scheduled for cleanup Saturday and Sunday of
this weekend. This has been going on since July 22' 2025. It was then discovered in the jury
room of the district courtroom. Air quality tests have been done by 2 different companies. AOC
had brought their environmentalist in for 2" opinion in air quality testing. AOC’s vendor Chase
Environmental comes up with the recommended cleaning. /remediation of mold. There was an
issue with the air intake system that comes into the building, it had been down, for how long we
do not know. They had been contracted with a company since 2016 that serviced and performed
preventative maintenance and biannual inspections on that system. AOC recommended that
HMC (a different Certified HVAC vendor) to do a complete review of this system. They have
documented everything. There was wiring that was done incorrectly in that system at some point
by the current contracted vendor, incorrect filter sizes put in by the vendors themselves, there
were a lot of issues. Judge Teegarden advised the filters for that system are provided by the
vendor for the maintenance to change. We don’t order those. Judge Teegarden stated she has put
into that vendor, in writing, to cancel their annual maintenance contract. HMC is the new
contractor that has been over there since August 5, 2025. They have been performing complete
system checks. The software vendor has been on site (on August 5 2025) to update the software.
HMC had repaired the air intake system. It had gone down the week prior. HMC advised this
system is not connected to the software for timing and control. That has been bypassed to allow
the machine to run full capacity 24/7 to lower humidity levels. They came Friday (8/22) and
came again this Monday (8/25) and have verified that the system (HVAC and Air Intake) is
working as it should. They said the electric could have glitched off /back on, and possibly that
could have shut down that intake system. The HVAC is working as it should right now. The
reports were sent to myself and AOC this morning (8/27). Judge Teegarden stated she gave each
court member a copy of the HMC maintenance agreement for $14,132. That has already been to
AOC and their compliance department. This has been sent in and reviewed and has been checked
to meet all the requirements and it has been preapproved by AOC. It will be integrated into the
quarterly payments that the Bracken County Fiscal Court receives from AOC. Judge Teegarden
stated there was a period of a week and half where the previous contractor was called in 5 or 6
times and none of these issues were found (air intake down, broken belts, etc.). The previous
contractor has 30 days to respond to the canceled contract, but we need someone now. She would
like to go ahead and approve this new contract with HMC. AOC agreed we need to change
contractors. Judge Teegarden stated she has documentation that shows it’s not from lack of
scheduled maintenance. They are saying they came and inspected regularly like their contract
stated, Judge Teegarden stated that what we are seeing could not have been checked as stated or
it would have been caught. Magistrate Ruf asked if AOC recommended this new company.
Judge Teegarden stated yes, but in 2016 they also recommended the company that we have now.
Magistrate Ruf asked if anyone has checked to make sure this new company does what it should.
Magistrate Miller stated Fleming County uses them as does Robertson County. They both have
stated they like working with HMC.

Craig Miller made a motion to approve the annual maintenance contract with HMC, in the
amount of $14,132, second by Debbie Mayfield.

Vote being unanimous.

Mold remediation removal

Judge Teegarden stated they were given a scope of work from the final results from the
environmentalist testing that was done as a second opinion from AOC. The quote had to mirror
the recommendation for cleaning done by the company quoting. All documentation and work
order request were sent to AOC, they preapproved it, they are scheduled to come. The quote was
for $10,462.93. The company is Dry Effect restoration services out of Cincinnati OH. They have
been really good to work with so far. They are trying to do it on a weekend for the building to be
closed (no public or employees). They will have to have air scrubbers running in specified areas,
and seal barriers on rooms being cleaned. The areas are as follows: CDW room, the waiting
room for that area. Some wooden surfaces inside the district court room, the district jury room,
the ceiling tiles and metal vents through the building that tested positive for mold. Magistrate
Miller stated this is all reimbursable by AOC correct, Judge Teegarden stated yes, it is on the
preapproved list as a non-reoccurring expense.

Magistrate Ruf made a motion to approve, Kevin Jarrells second it.

Vote being unanimous.




Fulltime Maintenance position

Judge Teegarden stated she has been working with other counties to see how they run their
maintenance and janitorial service positions in the state of Kentucky and in the BT Region. She
has reached out to AOC and some other Judicial centers. In a meeting had by AOC with County
Attorney, Circuit Judge/Clerk, Finance, maintenance, and county attorney July 28" there were
discussions of the building and its issues over the last several years. The current full time
maintenance position is caring for maintenance of all county buildings, (Judicial Center,
Courthouse, Dispatch, Animal Shelter, and Senior Center) she would like to move him out of the
Judicial Center and hire one person designated to the Judicial Center only. She spoke with
Mason County, and they have 3 fulltime maintenance that takes care of their county properties
and that does not include the jail. But they do not have a fulltime maintenance person standing in
the Judicial Center 5 days a week waiting for something to happen. She stated she talked to John
Simms in Fleming, and they bid out a contract for janitorial services, everything else is on a
preventative maintenance contract and they have vendors that come in and do the repairs. They
do not have a maintenance man that stands in the building, the walk throughs that are done in the
morning and afternoon are done by janitorial where they check the HVAC system software to
make sure there are no alarms sounding, nothing has gone down, etc. The only thing they have is
changing of lights and ballast. Judge Sims advised that for the ballast they call an electrician to
come in and change and for the lights they usually call him as the Judge and either him or the
janitorial or a court security officer will change them out. Everyone covers and works together to
make sure it gets done. Judge Teegarden stated what she would like to do is if they are going to
put someone separate over there, whether it be fulltime 40 hours a week or not, she would like to
have it contracted as a business or as a contract employee that does not fall under the
administrative code. There are certain rules that have to be followed for county employees and
that’s not going to work over at the Judicial Center. Magistrate Mayfield stated, isn’t there
already someone working over there? Judge Teegarden stated yes, there is maintenance and
janitorial. So, Timmy would just be maintenance for the county properties and not the Judicial
Center and the janitorial would stay the same, no changes. They would just have a maintenance
coordinator; they’d do the walk throughs and make sure all scheduled maintenance was done.
You could pay them a salary amount if you do it as a contractor, they have to have insurance and
be bonded. She’s talked to Danny Rhodes and AOC is not against this because everything they
do has to be sent to AOC to be approved. If they approve it, they take it to the county Judge.
Magistrate Ruf asked if they took our county person out, they don’t have to pay social security,
insurance etc. Judge Teegarden stated AOC covers this either way. There is a max through AOC
that the county has never hit. Judge Teegarden stated she wanted to see what direction the court
wanted to go in. Magistrate Kelsch asked did we pay half of his and then AOC pay? Judge
Teegarden stated we paid him and then whatever hours were spent at the Judicial Center AOC
reimbursed those hours 100%. There has never been a fulltime maintenance person at the
Judicial Center since it opened in 2013, it has always been part time. Magistrate Miller stated
maintenance there isn’t just inside the building, it’s also the grounds and the property of the
Judicial center. Judge Teegarden stated Fleming County also contracts out a company for
mowing, weed eating, landscaping and she is not opposed to that. AOC would reimburse that as
well. Magistrate Miller asked, HMC, is that a company that would be eligible for the
maintenance part of this. Judge Teegarden stated no, the only thing they would do would be
preventative maintenance to hvac/geothermal system. HMC included in their contract to change
the filters in all ceiling units in the building, due to the constant banter back and forth on whether
those are changed monthly or quarterly. Both vendors, old and new, have stated they are to be
changed quarterly. Magistrate Miller stated in the contract it cites 24-hour emergency service. If
this is subbed out to a private agency would the immediacy of this still be there? Judge
Teegarden stated as it is now for example, yesterday when there was a sewer line in the Circuit
Clerk bathroom backed up, they advised Mel. Mel then in turn works with maintenance to
contact vendor that AOC had repair the sewer line beneath the floor in Circuit Clerk’s office in
June. That vendor was to be there Monday, and they couldn’t come until today (Wednesday).
That bathroom is out of order until they come. County Maintenance cannot repair that issue.
Judge Teegarden stated that for Fleming County, she asked who does the contractor scheduling if
there is an issue and he advised his finance does the scheduling, which is what Mel does here.
Judge Teegarden stated that unless it is something that shuts the building down, they are given
time to get there. And really the maintenance person could go over and get things shut down and
wait a day or two for the person to get there to repair. Judge Teegarden stated for an example
vendors would be, HMC for air intake and the geothermal system, conservation irrigation of
Cincinnati for the outside sprinkler lines, Johnson controls for fire protection, Tristate elevator
for all elevators, Global water technology-the water treatment vendor, Ed Schmitt plumbing that
takes care of the septic, and Koorsen fire, Cintas and Terminix. She would like to add that she is
100% for mowing, weed eating and landscaping contracted out to someone. Magistrate Miller
asked, as a contracted employee, are you looking for an individual or a business. If it is an
individual, they may not require bonding, but she is getting that confirmed. Magistrate Miller




made a motion to move forward looking at either an individual or business depending on who
comes forward. Magistrate Kelsch asked how much time our maintenance person spends over at
that building. Judge Teegarden stated its hard to say over the last 5 weeks. There is a sprinkler
line leaking out back that they have came and capped off. This line runs out the sidewalk,
through the parking lot and out back. There was a sewer repaired that backed up again and they
had to call the contractor to come in for that. He’s over there every time HMC has come in to
look at the problem. He’s been helping Crystal and Shelby with the dehumidifiers. Magistrate
Mayfield stated so Timmy would not need to be over there once this gets squared away, who
would Shelby report to? Judge Teegarden stated she would still report the same. If something
needs to be done over there, she reports to Crystal, but she is a county employee. First point of
contact is the Judge Executive. HMC will do the filter changing, with the discrepancy and what
is expected with these filters, this will fall under the annual preventative maintenance of the
contract of the HVAC system because they are changing filters monthly that the old contractor
and the new contractor says will be done quarterly. They will not put people on the top rung of
ladders so there is a lift in the contracted amount so as to not violate any safety requirements.
Magistrate Ruf stated she does not see a problem with contracting this out if AOC reimburses.
Magistrate Sandy Ruf asked what happens when the building is turned over to the county
completely in 2033?

There’s a common misconception that when the bonds are paid and it is 100% with Bracken
County Fiscal Court in 2033, that we no longer get reimbursement form AOC. As long as the
county never moves any county offices, etc. into the Judicial Center all reimbursements continue
just as they are. Employee and vendor contracts etc. County attorney Moore stated that is correct.
The only thing that could change is say we moved another office into that building, then your
percentage of reimbursement from AOC would change. Then it would be a landlord tenant
situation. Judge Teegarden stated she will be getting ready to publish the request for bids for
snow removal of the parking lots and salting. She would like to know if the court would care for
her to publish for the mowing weed eating and landscaping etc. of the Judicial Center. Magistrate
Scott stated an electrician needs to be found as a vendor for the Judicial Center as well.

Advertise for quotes — Judicial Center weed eating, mowing, and landscaping, once the
bond amount required by AOC is provided.

Heather Brumley made a motion to advertise for quotes, Sandy Ruf second it.

Magistrate Jarrells asked if these things that are set out to bid, can they all be set out at one time
instead of one here and one there. Judge Teegarden stated that if they did that it would take them
out of the Buffalo Trace Road commission because they open bids up there and do that and then
we have our own bidding process for stuff here at our office. These jobs are not over 40,000 so
they’re not going to require a bid she is just opening this up for anyone that would like to put a
quote in for these 2 things. AOC has to approved these for the Judicial Center This is our regular
process of quote/approval.

Vote being unanimous

Magistrate Brumley asked who is technically over that building, in charge. County Attorney
Moore stated technically the county is, Magistrate Brumley asked the county as in the Judge,
Fiscal Court? County Attorney Moore stated it is open to interpretation in that contract because it
does give the circuit court judge authority over the space in the building. The county is to
provide maintenance and janitorial services. Whether the Judge being over the space means he’s
over those things. Her interpretation says no. The County/Contractors are to get with them
(Circuit Judge) as far as timing, but they do not have to be included in all the decisions that they
are making. She can give the court all a copy of the contract between the county and AOC. Part
of the problem is what is the space. If you view it as a landlord tenant situation its pretty clear.
Judge Teegarden stated each has a point of contact. Judge Schumacher verbally stated Crystal
would be his point of contact. The Judge for Fiscal Court has always been the point of contact,
and the financial person is her point of contact because she handles all the vendors and
paperwork with AOC. Judge Teegarden stated she will relay by email what she has found out
about AOC requirements for Contract maintenance coordinator and for the quotes for mowing
landscaping services. Magistrate Brumley asked if it had to be fulltime. She stated it needs to be
looked at as far as a fulltime or parttime position. Judge Teegarden stated there is a level that
Judge Schumacher would have to agree on things as well.

Judge Teegarden advised that there has always been a contract with AOC since her career began
in the Judge Executives office in 1997. When Kitty Rigg was Circuit Clerk on the second floor
of this courthouse a contract was done with quarterly payments to the county based on the square
footage AOC was using. Large repairs were approved as non-reoccurring expenses with AOC
just like today’s contract. This contract and the process the county goes through with AOC for
the space is the same as today. This is not something new for the County Judge Executive’s
Office. This did not just begin in 2013 when the building was opened.



Bond Report
These bonds that are at US Bank under the public properties’ cooperation are the Judicial center

bonds. This is the report that was not attached to the annual settlement that the treasurer gave out
at the last meeting. Basically, this is the financial record as things come in and are paid, the
interest on the bonds. AOC is actually over the bonds. They have RSA over the bonds The public
properties cooperation. This report needs to be approved so that the treasurer can reports these
bonds to DLG.

Motion for approval made by Heather Brumley, second by Craig Miller

Vote being unanimous

General Fund Vendor Claims

Motion for approval made by Debbie Mayfield, second by John Scott.

David Kelsch asked what kind of procedure was done on puppies for the $6600.00. Judge
Teegarden stated a lot of it is parvo treatment and health certificates to go to rescues and humane
societies and things like that. County Attorney Moore stated one is coming to court so she will be
trying to get reimbursement for the county on that. Magistrate Mayfield asked if most of the time
that large litters are brought in, are they being left in the drop bin. Judge Teegarden stated yes,
they’ve been left in boxes outside of the gate out on Hamilton Road. Magistrate Ruf asked where
they stand on the fence. Judge Teegarden stated the bid came in at over $53,000 so she is looking
for an alternate route. Magistrate Miller asked, the spay and neuter grants are they available
through state associations that are private, department of agriculture is the only one that a county
owned shelter can apply for that she is aware of. Magistrate Miller stated so aside from
charitable organizations that is the only other route that they could go. Judge Teegarden stated
the nonprofit that is in Bracken County, they apply for some things or us to apply for the spay
and neuter.

Yes votes: Danny Holleran, Debbie Mayfield. John Scott. Heather Brumley, Kevin Jarrells,
Judge Teegarden, Sandy Ruf, David Kelsh

Abstained due to claim: Craig Miller.

Road Fund Vendor Claims
Motion for approval made by Danny Holleran, second by Sany Ruf
Vote being unanimous

Jail Fund Vendor Claims
Motion for approval made by David Kelsch, second by Danny Holleran
Vote being unanimous

Dispatch 911 Fund Vendor Claims
Motion for approval made by John Scott, second by Sandy Ruf
Vote being unanimous

Senior Citizens Fund Vendor Claims
Motion for approval made by Debbie Mayfield, second by Kevin Jarrells
Vote being unanimous

Other Business:

Judge Teegarden stated that she wanted to let everyone know that she has finally, with the help
of the KY Humane Society, secured a mobile spay and neuter unit that’s coming in for cats and
dogs, this is for all residents, in October. The extension district has given permission to use their
meeting room for the pickup drop off and the use of a temperature-controlled room for those 2
days. There will be a deposit by citizens online to set up the appointment, once you show up for
your appointment that payment is refunded to their account. There will be zero charge to the
residents. Magistrate Ruf asked, could they donate the deposit to the animal shelter. Judge
Teegarden stated you could, but this is a mobile caravan, so it is completely separate from the
animal shelter. You could donate your deposit to them which isn’t a bad thing as they are going
to continue serving Bracken County.



Magistrate Brumley updated the court on the county website. It should be up and running at the
end of September/beginning of October. They have to build out the site completely and will
work on quality assurance after that and then will get the training out to the editors etc.
Magistrate Mayfield asked if we would then start looking at adding the other stuff like
ordinances etc. Judge Teegarden stated through the company the price would be unreal, so they
are still exploring other avenues for that. They do need American publishing to come in and do
some formatting and such before then as well. Judge Teegarden stated they still have to figure
out who the administrator of the website will be.

Sheriff Boody had some information on the discussed crash data from last meeting. From August
of last year to today the sheriff’s office has worked 137 crashes, City of Augusta worked 31.
There were 168 crashes for the year. 30 of those collisions were on the AA, 22 were on Route 8.
In his opinion, route 8 is just as bad if not worse than the AA.

Motion to adjourn made by Kevin Jarrells, second by Danny Holleran
Vote being unanimous.

S/ S/
Jennifer Free, Fiscal Court Clerk Tina K. Teegarden, Co Judge Executive




